Minutes of the Minnesott Beach Town Commissioners' Meeting
July 12,2016

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was
held Tuesday, July 12, 2016 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler,
Commissioner Carolyn Casey, Commissioner Eber Warren and Commissioner Cliff
Braly.

MEMBERS ABSENT: none
OTHERS PRESENT: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager; Pete & Karen Hall.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order with a
moment of silence and led everyone in the U.S. Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the July 12, 2016 BOC meeting
agenda. Commissioner Braly moved to approve the agenda as amended. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to June 14, 2016 meeting minutes.
Commissioner Warren moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public comments: Mr. Pete Hall regarding Arlington Place roads.

Mr. Pete Hall voiced concerns about the future of the roads in Arlington Place. He
commented on the letter from the residents of Arlington Place supporting the position
of Arlington Place & Burton Farms Developers on the letter of credit held by BB&T
for the Town of Minnesott Beach. He said he has been researching the history of the
letter of credit. His concern is that most of the residents have no understanding or
knowledge about this issue. Mr. Hall expressed concerns that the base road bed
would not last for another 10-15 years. The developers are scheduled to turn
maintenance of the roads over to the HOA by 2030. Mr. Hall said he would like to
see the Mill Creek side of the development with the top coat on the roads within the
next couple years and was going to make that presentation to the HOA.
Commissioner Fowler said this was the first time the board has heard from anyone
other than the developers, a single property owner and one other who is not a property
owner regarding the letter credit. Commissioner Fowler thanked Mr. & Mrs. Hall for
coming and said the commissioners would do what they could within their powers for
all citizens of the town. Mayor Potter said the town has tried to be very
understanding. This is the 10" year the town has dealt with the letter of credit.
Mayor Potter said the board has addressed the issue every time there has been a
complaint. The Developers have been told this could not go on indefinitely. Mayor
Potter expressed concerns that inflation could present problems with having enough
funds to finish the project. Each year we get an engineering report that there are
enough funds to cover the cost to complete the roads. Mr. Daniels responded to a
letter from Mayor that he was having engineers look at the roads again. Mayor Potter




said he had not seen the engineer’s report. At the September board meeting, the
commissioners will decide whether or not to extend the letter of credit based on the
engineer’s report. Mayor Potter commented that the letter from the residents shows
they are concerned about the roads but they do not want to take over the maintenance
of the roads prematurely. The Town’s attorney has said one of the town’s option is to
turn over the letter of credit to the HOA to handle. Mayor Potter thanked Mr. & Mrs.
Hall for their concerns and reiterated that the town is concerned as well.

Town Manager’s Report: There have been no zoning permit applications. The
Manager reported she is working on updating the webpage to make it more user
friendly and more sophisticated. She reported her findings for Chamber members.

Planning Board Report: Dennis Humenik was not present. Town Manager reported
they have an August meeting scheduled.

Old Business: for discussion and possible motion or action

Website Policy change — Commissioners Casey & Fowler

Commissioner Fowler reported the committee met and drafted a document to change
the Website Policy. It is more open and general. A copy was passed out to all
commissioners. Mayor Potter recommended changing the wording from
“Commissioner” to “Commissioner/designee.” Carolyn Casey is the Commissioner
responsible, but Carolyn Braly is her designee who will do the work. Commissioner
Fowler moved to adopt the new webpage policy as amended. All ayes.

Chamber of Commerce membership — Mayor Potter asked for input from the board.
Commission Warren asked if this meets our criteria for organizations seeking
donations. Town Manager asked if membership was the same as a donation.
Commissioner Warren said that town residents would not receive any benefit from the
town being a member. The Chamber supports and advertises local businesses. The
Town is already listed in the municipalities listings on the Chamber’s website and in
their brochure. Commissioner Fowler said the membership could also be classified as
dues & subscriptions. Mayor Potter said if we are not getting any benefits it is a
donation. Commissioner Fowler suggested that no action be taken.

Drainage repairs on CCD — Commissioner Braly reported the correct grade had been
established to allow proper drainage within the town’s right of way. Ken Heath has
finished the grading with only the seeding, sodding and/or riprap needed to complete
the job. This should solve the standing water issue.

Animal control — Commissioner Casey reported she was not sure if the problem of
roaming dogs has not been solved. The complaint has not been withdrawn. Mayor
Potter asked the Town Manager to send another letter to all parties that there would be
a hearing at the next board meeting unless the complaint is dropped.

New Business: for discussion and possible motion or action

1. Resolution to close streets for Community Parade — Mayor Potter read the




resolution to the board. Commissioner Fowler moved to adopt the resolution. All ayes.
Commissioner Braly asked about the procedure to block the roads. Mayor Potter said
the town would put out the orange cones. Since this is a first time for doing this, if
something else is needed, that will be done at our next parade.

2. Appointment of Planning Board members —Commissioner Fowler reported that
Dennis Humenik, Adam Garfinkel and Rich Beland terms have expired. They were
contacted. Both Mr. Garfinkel and Mr. Humenik consented to stay on the board and
Rich Beland has resigned. Commissioner Fowler moved to reappoint Mr. Humenik and
Mr. Garfinkel to the board for two years and appoint Mr. Humenik as Chairman. All
ayes. Commissioner Fowler said the board two vacant seats.

Financial Report — Commissioner Warren

Financial Report: Commissioner Warren reported the Town is in good shape. He
reported the Ad Valorem taxes collected were above what was budgeted and the
expenditures were all under budget. This is the beginning of the new year. The
town's current assets as of June 30, 2016 are: First Citizen's Bank Checking
$10,132.60; First Citizen's MM $248,852.61; First South Bank & Savings
$216,910.50; North Carolina Management Trust is $201,059.01; Petty Cash $50.00.
The town currently has 4 CDs at First South Bank & Savings ($40,000; $20,542.96;
$20,119.55; and $20,034.68). Total assets to the Town are a total of $799,429.71.

Miscellaneous:
Mayor Potter reported he is still waiting for information from Arlington Place
regarding their letter of credit.

Mayor Potter reported that an East Carolina Homes modular home that will be placed
on Phillips Drive is an off frame unit. He reported the Smith’s had purchased an on
frame modular on March 10®. No permit was applied for until July. Everything has
been corrected to meet the Town’s ordinance requirements. There is a Pamlico
County septic permit in place for the lot.

Mayor Potter reported he’d forwarded an email to Commissioner Fowler &
Commissioner Braly concerning Federal grants for town roads intersecting with state
roads that needed work. Bennett, Country Club, Brinson, Phillips intersect with state
road and do not have any issues. Commissioner Warren asked if Bennet Road was
going to be resurfaced. Commissioner Braly said County Commissioner Heath had
reported that Bennett Road was in the budget for resurfacing. Patching is currently
being done.

Commissioner Warren moved to adjourn. All ayes.

enise Meyerson, TLown lerk



